
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, January 13, 2015

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street
Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Prayer

A Prayer will be offered by Councillor Given.

3. Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 16

Public Hearing - December 9, 2014
Regular Meeting - December 9, 2014

4. Bylaws Considered at Public Hearing

4.1 Bylaw No. 11035 (TA14-0011) - Adding RM2h to the CD6 - Comprehensive
Development Zone Golf Resort for Tower Ranch

17 - 18

To give Bylaw No. 11035 second and third readings, and adoption, in order to
amend the CD6 - Comprehensive Residential Golf Resort zone to allow RM2h -
Low Density Row Housing (Hillside Area) to the zones under which regulations
the lands may be developed, for the Tower Ranch area, according to 'CD6-Map
1'.

4.2 Bylaw No. 11036 (Z14-0049) - 5505-5507 Airport Way, Midwest Ventures Ltd. 19 - 20

To give Bylaw No. 11036 second and third readings in order to rezone portions
of the subject parcel to the C9 - Tourist Commerical zone and CD15 - Airport
Business Park zone to allow for a retail liquor sales establishment over 90
square metres.

4.3 Bylaw No. 11037 (OCP14-0020) - 5000 Gordon Drive, No. 21 Great Projects Ltd. 21 - 22

Requires a majority of all member of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 11037 second and third readings in order to amend the
Future Land Use designations of portions of the subject property to facilitate
the development of a single-family residential subdivision.



4.4 Bylaw No. 11038 (Z14-0037) - 5000 Gordon Drive, No. 21 Great Projects Ltd. 23 - 24

To give Bylaw No. 11038 second and third readings in order to rezone portions
of the subject property to facilitate the development of a single-family
residential subdivision.

4.5 Bylaw No. 11040 (Z14-0046) - 822 McCurdy Place, Hyatt Auto Sales Ltd. 25 - 25

To give Bylaw No. 11040 second and third readings in order to rezone the
subject property from the I1 - Business Industrial zone to the I2 - General
Industrial zone.

4.6 Bylaw No. 11041 (Z14-0039) - 2046 Pandosy Street, Camara Ventures Ltd. 26 - 26

To give Bylaw No. 11041 second and third readings in order to rezone the
subject property from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 - Two
Dwelling Housing zone to allow a second dwelling to be built.

4.7 Bylaw No. 11042 (Z14-0040) - 4065 Lakeshore Road, City of Kelowna 27 - 28

To give Bylaw No. 11042 second and third readings in order to rezone the
subject property from the P1 - Major Institutional zone to the P3 - Parks and
Open Space and RU2 - Medium Lot Housing zones to facilitate a two lot
subdivision.

4.8 Bylaw No. 11043 (LUC14-0001) - 1020 Sutcliffe Court, 1009440 BC Ltd. 29 - 29

To give Bylaw No. 11043 second and third readings in order to discharge the
Land Use Contract from the subject property.

4.9 Bylaw No. 11044 (Z14-0043) - 1020 Sutcliffe Court, 1009440 BC Ltd. 30 - 30

To give Bylaw No. 11044 second and third readings in order to rezone the
subject property from the RR3 - Rural Residential 3 zone to the RU1 - Large Lot
Housing zone to facilitate a two lot subdivision.

4.10 Bylaw No. 11045 (Z14-0042) - 2210 Abbott Street, Strandhaus Developments
Inc.

31 - 31

To give Bylaw No. 11045 second and third readings in order to rezone the
subject property from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 - Two
Dwelling Housing zone to allow a semi-detached dwelling to be built.

5. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.



6. Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Reports

6.1 Development Permit Application No. DP14-0158 & Development Variance
Permit Application No. DVP14-0161 - 1745 Chapman Place, City of Kelowna

32 - 64

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a Development Permit and Development Variance Permit
application for the form and character of a multi-family development on the
subject property.

6.2 Development Permit Application No. DP14-0221 and Development Variance
Permit Application No. DVP14-0223 - 845 Academy Way, Watermark
Developments Ltd.

65 - 114

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a Development Permit and Development Variance Permit
application for the form and character of a multi-family development on the
subject property.

7. Resolutions

7.1 Draft Resolution, Bylaw No. 11039 (Z14-0045) - 828, 834, 871 & 877 McCurdy
Place, Harmony Holdings Limited

115 - 115

To defer consideration of Bylaw No. 11039 to the February 3, 2015 Public
Hearing.

8. Reminders

9. Termination



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11035 
TA14-0011 – CD6 – Comprehensive Development Golf Resort,  

Tower Ranch Area 
 
 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT Schedule ‘B’ – CD6 – Comprehensive Residential Golf Resort/CD6lp – 
Comprehensive Residential Golf Resort (Liquor Primary), 1.6 Other Regulations, 
sub-paragraph (c) be amended: 

 
a) to add a new section (c.1) as follows: 

“(c.1)  Within the Tower Ranch Area, identified in ‘CD6-Map 1’, subject to the 
Development Regulations of this section, and in addition to zones noted in 
Section (c) above, the lands may also be developed in accordance with the 
RM2h zone as contained in Zoning Bylaw No. 8000.” 

2. THAT Schedule ‘B’ – CD6 – Comprehensive Residential Golf Resort/CD6lp – 
Comprehensive Residential Golf Resort (Liquor Primary) be amended to add a new 
CD6 – Map 1 to the end of the zone as attached to and forming part of this bylaw. 

3. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 
from the date of adoption. 

 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 8th day of December, 2014. 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the  
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 

17



 

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: November 17th, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-40 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: DP14-0158 & DVP14-0161 Owner: City of Kelowna 

Address: 1745 Chapman Road Applicant: Patrick McCusker 
Architecture Inc. 

Title: Development Permit and Development Variance Permit 

Existing OCP Designation: MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) 

Existing Zone: CD22 – Central Green – Sub Area H 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP14-0158 for Lot 2, District 
Lot 139, ODYD, Plan KAP92715 except plan EPP40150, located on 1745 Chapman Road, Kelowna, 
BC subject to the following: 

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “A”; 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 

3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule “C”; 

4. Prior to issuance of the Building Permit, the requirements of the Development Engineering 
Branch must be satisfied; 

5. The applicant be required to post with the City, a Landscape Performance Security 
deposit in the form of a “Letter of Credit” in the amount of 125% of the estimated value 
of the landscaping, as determined by a professional landscaper;  

6. Issuance of a lease agreement between the owner (City of Kelowna) and the tenant (Ki-
Low-Na Friendship Society). 

7. Contaminated Sites release letter from the Ministry of Environment 

AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted conditions within 180 
days of Council’s approval of the Development Permit Application in order for the permit to be 
issued. 

32



DP14-0158 & DVP14-0161 – Page 2 
 
 

THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0161, Lot 2, 
District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan KAP92715 except plan EPP40150, located on 1745 Chapman Road, 
Kelowna, BC. 

AND THAT the variance to the following section Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 18 – Comprehensive Development Zones - Schedule 11.6 CD22 Sub-Area H Zoning – 
Setbacks 

Vary the front yard setback from 3.0 m required to 0.6 m proposed.  

Section 18 – Comprehensive Development Zones - Schedule 11.6 CD22 Sub-Area H Zoning – 
Setbacks 

Vary the internal side yard setback from 3.0 m required to 0.0 m proposed. 

Section 8.1 – Parking Schedule 

Vary the parking requirements from 80 parking stalls required to 67 parking stalls proposed. 

Section 8.3 – Bicycle Parking Schedule 

Vary the bicycle parking requirements from 9 ‘class 2’ bicycle stalls required to 0 ‘class 2’ bicycle 
stalls proposed. 

2.0 Purpose 

To consider a Development Permit and Development Variance Permit application for the form 
and character of a multi-family development on the subject property.  

3.0 Urban Planning  

Urban Planning staff supports the Development Permit and the requested variances to the Zoning 
Bylaw to allow the construction of a 86 unit affordable housing project. 

The project will form part of the implementation 
of the vision for Kelowna’s Central Green urban 
neighbourhood while creating affordable housing 
rental units. The project will create its own mini-
community with a large, internal landscape 
courtyard over the parking garage and a ground-
related indoor amenity facility. This amenity space 
will provide a connecting indoor and outdoor 
amenity area for play, gardening, and community 
events. The positioning and general massing of the 
building conforms to the Central Green Guidelines 
Plan CG-1 for Sub-Area H. The building is designed 
to have a strongly-articulated edge along Chapman 
Place to both establish an urban streetscape and 
transition from nearby buildings. The external 
materials and colours are combined with a blend 
of traditional and contemporary residential design 
elements, providing an interesting infill 
development which complements the surrounding 
area. Unfortunately, the building form (stepbacks) 
do not follow the Development Permit Guidelines. 
Improvements to design were suggested but to 

Fig. 1: Sub-Areas Identified in CD-22 Central 
Green Zone 

33



DP14-0158 & DVP14-0161 – Page 3 
 
 

keep the project financially feasible the applicant needed to maximize the number of units which 
did not support a stepbacked building design. 

A large amenity court yard facing the eventual park space within Sub- Areas A and B is 
anticipated to match the grade of the future park space and provide a seamless access in the 
future. The proposed lease agreement with the City will 
need to identify that the exposed parkade wall along the 
interface area (as identified in Fig. 2) and within the right-
of-way area will be filled in (to match the future grade) 
when the adjacent Central Green properties are developed. 

A zero lot line setback is proposed for the parking garage 
located along the east property line facing sub area A. This 
provides for a seamless pedestrian connection with the 
future park and the adjacent development. This variance 
was needed due to a 6 metre road dedication along 
Chapman Place. The applicant is requesting a bicycle 
parking variance to eliminate the required 9 class 2 bicycle 
parking stalls. Class 2 bicycle parking means parking 
provided for patrons or visitors of a development and is 
intended for the short term parking of bicycles (e.g. racks, 
lockers, etc.). The applicant only requires 43 class 1 bicycle 
parking spaces and is providing 57 class 1 bicycyle parking 
spaces. Class 1 bicycle parking spaces means bicycle parking 
that is provided for residents of a development and is 
intended for the long term secure parking of bicycles. 
Therefore, Staff support the variance as the applicant is providing additional bicycle storage but 
remove the requirement for them to be placed outside for visitors. This also compliments the 
applicant’s vehicle parking reduction variance by providing more alternative means of 
transportation (bicycle) storage. 

The CD-22 zone completed a traffic impact study to determine an appropriate level of parking 
per unit and recommended a significant reduction in the level of parking as compared to non - CD 
(Comprehensive Development) zone. The applicant is requesting a 17% parking reduction from 
the CD zone required 80 parking stalls to 67 parking stalls. This project is located within the 
Downtown Urban Centre in which the cash-in-lieu of providing parking bylaw applies. The 
Downtown Urban Centre sets a cash-in-lieu rate of $22,500 per stall. The 13 parking stall 
reduction would then require the development to provide $292,500 cash-in-lieu. The non-profit 
group (Ki-Low-Na Friendship Society) is developing the project with the financial backing of BC 
Housing but cannot make the affordable housing project financially feasible unless the parking 
variance is granted which would eliminate the need to pay for cash-in-lieu of providing the 
parking. 

The project is being built and administered by a non-profit group with the goal to increase 
affordable housing. Staff recommends that the variance be considered positively due to the 
social sustainability goals outlined within the Official Community Plan. 

 

 

 

 

Fig. 2:  
Interface area with temporary   
exposed parkade wall.  
Variance to 0.0 m setback  
Variance to 0.6 m setback 

34



DP14-0158 & DVP14-0161 – Page 4 
 
 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The proposed project is an 86-unit, four-storey, wood-framed residential building with 66 
underground parking stalls. The objective of the project is to provide affordable rental 
accommodation to  a wide demographic including singles, families, and seniors. To achieve this, 
the project will provide a diverse unit mix ranging from single room studio units to three-
bedroom units. In addition, four one-bedroom units will be suitable for people with disabilities. 

The pedestrian lobby will be accessed from Chapman Place, directly across from the junction 
with Rosemead Avenue. Access to the under-building parking will be from the existing lane at the 
northeast end of Chapman Place. Garbage and recycling will be located on grade along the 
existing lane and within a screened outdoor enclosure.  

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located at the west end of Central Green site. The property has a Future 
Land Use designation of MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) in the Official 
Community Plan, is within the Permanent Growth Boundary, and is within the Downtown Urban 
Centre. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 
North C4 – Urban Centre Commercial Commercial 
East CD22 – Central Green Vacant / park / snow dump 
South RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing Multiple family dwellings 
West RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing Multiple family dwellings 

 

Subject Property Map: 1745 Chapman Place 

 

 

35



DP14-0158 & DVP14-0161 – Page 5 
 
 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA CD-22 ZONE 
REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area n/a 3,413 m2 
Lot Width n/a 43 m 
Lot Depth n/a 70 m 

Development Regulations 
Site Coverage (buildings) 50% 50% 

FAR 1.7 1.51 
Height 16.5 m and 4 storeys 16.5 m and 4 storeys 

Front Yard (south) 3.0 m 0.6 m  
Side Yard (east) 3.0 m 0.0 m  
Side Yard (west) 3.0 m 3.0 m 
Rear Yard (north) 3.0 m 3.0 m  

Other Regulations 
Private Open Space 1,232 m2 1,232 m2 

Parking Stalls 80 67  

Bicycle Spaces 43 Class 1 spaces 
9 Class 2 spaces 

57 Class 1 spaces 
0 Class 2 spaces  

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the minimum front yard from 3.0 m required to 0.6 m proposed. 
 Indicates a requested variance to change the number of parking stalls from 63 required to 60 proposed. 
 Indicates a requested variance to change the number of parking stalls from 80 required to 67 proposed. 
 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the minimum side yard (east) from 3.0 m required to 0.0 m proposed. 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1

Sensitive Infill.

 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

2

Parking Relaxations.

 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height and siting. 

3

 

 Consider parking requirement relaxations, in areas that are not part of a 
cash-in-lieu program, where an approved TDM strategy indicates a lower use of vehicles and the 
City is satisfied that parking relaxations would not create parking spill-over problems on 
adjoining neighbourhood streets. Parking relaxations will not be considered in hillside areas (as 
defined on Map 4.1 - Future Land Use). 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 
3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.11.1 (Development Process Chapter). 

36



DP14-0158 & DVP14-0161 – Page 6 
 
 

City-Owned Land.4

6.0 Technical Comments  

 Continue to consider the potential to lease City-owned land to non-profit 
housing societies to assist in the delivery of affordable housing. 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

• Development Cost Charges (DCCs) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any Building 
Permits.   

• Placement permits are required for any sales or construction trailers that will be on site. 
The location(s) of these are to be shown at time of development permit application.  

• A Hoarding permit is required and protection of the public from the staging area and the 
new building area during construction. Location of the staging area and location of any 
cranes should be established at time of DP. 

• A Building Code analysis is required for the structure at time of building permit 
applications, but the following items may affect the form and character of the building(s): 

a. The building elevations are not reflective of the floor plans 

b. Any security system that limits access to exiting needs to be addressed in 
the code analysis by the architect. 

c. A vestibule may be required between the parkade and the lobby space  

d. The firewall is not allowed to be bridged and minimum projection is 
required. Further details of this are to be provided at time of building 
permit application, but may affect the form and character of the building 

e. Mechanical Ventilation inlet and exhausts vents are not clearly defined in 
these drawings for the enclosed parking. The location and noise from these 
units should be addressed at time of Development Permit. 

• A Geotechnical report is required to address the sub soil conditions and site drainage at 
time of building permit application. A minimum Geodetic Elevation of 344.75 meters is 
required for all habitable spaces including the parking garage(s) perm the mill creek flood 
plain bylawDevelopment Engineering Department. 

• We strongly recommend that the developer have his professional consultants review and 
prepare solutions for potential impact of this development on adjacent properties. Any 
damage to adjacent properties is a civil action which does not involve the city directly. 
The items of potential damage claims by adjacent properties are items like settlement of 
foundations (preload), damage to the structure during construction, additional snow drift 
on neighbour roofs, excessive noise from mechanical units, vibration damage during 
foundation preparation work etc. 

• Guards are required for all decks and walkways. The drawings provided don’t clearly 
identify these requirements, but will be reviewed at time of building permit application. 
The appearance of these guards may affect the form and character of the building. 

• Fire resistance ratings are required for storage, janitor and/or garbage enclosure room(s). 
The drawings submitted for building permit is to clearly identify how this rating will be 
achieved and where these area(s) are located. 

                                                
4 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 10.3.2 (Social Sustainability Chapter). 

37



DP14-0158 & DVP14-0161 – Page 7 
 
 

• An exit analysis is required as part of the code analysis at time of building permit 
application. The exit analysis is to address travel distances within the units, number of 
required exits per area, door swing direction, handrails on each side of exit stairs, width 
of exits etc. With the number of units in this complex we would expect that the doors 
from the amenity areas (interior and exterior) would exit outwards. 

• Washroom requirements for base building are to be addressed in the building permit 
application. 

• Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. Please indicate how the requirements of Radon mitigation and NAFS are 
being applied to this structure. 

 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

• See attached memorandum. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: August 4th, 2014 
Date of Public Consultation:  November 14th, 2014  
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager  
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director - 
 Community Planning & Real Estate 

 

 

Attachments:  
Subject Property Map 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
Draft Development Permit / Development Variance Permit 

• Schedule ‘A’ 
o Site Plan  
o Floor Plan 

• Schedule ‘B’ 
o Elevations 

• Schedule ‘C’ 
o Landscape Plan 

 

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: November 27th, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-40 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: DP14-0221 & DVP14-0223 Owner: 
Watermark Developments 
Ltd., Inc. No. BC0642787 

Address: 845 Academy Way Applicant: Mission Group Homes 

Title: 
2015 01 13 Report DP14-0221 and DVP14-0223 Academy Way - U2 and 
Development Variance Permit 

Existing OCP Designation: MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) 

Existing Zone: RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP14-0221 for Lot 4, Section 
10, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP45918, located on 845 Academy Way, Kelowna, BC subject to 
the following: 

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “A”; 

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 

3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule “C”; 

4. Prior to issuance of the Building Permit, the requirements of the Development Engineering 
Branch must be satisfied as described in the report’s “Attachments”; 

5. Prior to issuance of the Building Permit, the requirements of Subdivision file (S14-0036) 
must be satisfied; 

6. That a statutory right-of-way be registered on the subject property for a trail connection 
as described in the Primary Parks, Trails, and Open Space Plan prepared by CTQ in July 
2010 Area Structure Plan; 

7. The applicant be required to post with the City, a Landscape Performance Security 
deposit in the form of a “Letter of Credit” in the amount of 125% of the estimated value 
of the landscaping, as determined by a professional landscaper;  

AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0223, Lot 
4, Section 10, Township 23, ODYD, Plan EPP45918, located on 845 Academy Way, Kelowna, BC. 

65



DP14-0221 & DVP14-0223 – Page 2 

 
 

AND THAT the variance to the following section Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 8.1 – Parking Schedule 

Vary the parking requirements from 167 parking stalls required to 155 parking stalls proposed. 

2.0 Purpose 

To consider a Development Permit and Development Variance Permit application for the form 
and character of a multi-family development on the subject property.  

3.0 Urban Planning  

Following the initial development of the Academy Hill mixed-use development and the 66 unit 
“U1” residential development located immediately north of the subject property, the proposed 
building is the fourth to be developed as part of the University South Area. Urban Planning is 
supportive of the proposed development as it is generally consistent with the applicable 
Development Permit Guidelines contained in the Official Community Plan (OCP) as well as the 
University Village Master Plan. 

The building design respects the University Village Master Plan concept, with the long articulated 
building form following the site contours and the shorter building façade facing Academy Way. 
The architectural form and character of the “U2” project is in a “campus modern” style which 
will complement the character of the recently constructed buildings at UNCO and on Academy 
Way. The west facing building façade and streetscape design has incorporated articulated corner 
details, appropriate landscape features, walls, building signage, and an articulated building 
façade which creates a welcoming building vista from Academy Way. A positive design feature is 
the building entry is located well away from the parkade entrance. Further, the applicant has 
incorporated Staff’s design comments including horizontal and vertical movements through the 
building elevations, enhanced building street presence, and improved sidewalk / pathway 
connectivity. The design has thoughtfully responded to the challenges of the sloping site, and 
landscaping is used effectively to integrate the building into the surrounding natural setting and 
to minimize exposed retaining features. All units are provided with ample private open space in 
balconies and yards, as well as access to ground-level community garden and outdoor amenity 
areas. 

Staff is supportive of the proposed variance to reduce the required onsite parking from 167 
spaces to 155 spaces, a variance of 12 spaces (a 7% reduction). The previous development (U1) 
had a 7% parking variance. The development is targeted principally for students and staff of the 
adjacent UBC Okanagan campus. The argument put forth from the applicant is that the future 
occupants (staff and students) will have a reduced level of vehicle ownership and is close to the 
University. There are currently no nearby commercial ventures and residents will likely need a 
vehicle (or transit) to travel for those purposes. However, there is an area set aside for future 
commercial development on Academy Way.  

The residents on Academy Way will likely be primarily accessing UBCO and assuming car 
ownership will be lower justifying a parking variance adequate alternative active transportation 
links need to be established. Currently, the direct foot traffic and active transportation link is 
through a forested area which is designated to be an excavated cut for the future John Hindle 
Drive. A pedestrian bridge is proposed over John Hindle Drive to provide a reasonable pedestrian 
connection between Academy Way and UBCO. No budget is currently allocated for construction.  

The requested parking variance is similar to the U1 project and is considered minor enough (≤ 7% 
variance) to not substantially increase any on-street parking problems. 

66



DP14-0221 & DVP14-0223 – Page 3 

 
 

 

Figure 1: Current pedestrian connection that will be eliminated due to John Hindle Drive construction 

 

Figure 2: Future John Hindle Drive and Potential pedestrian connections 

 
 

 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by individually contacting the neighbours as described in the attached 
Schedule ‘A’. No major issues were identified during the initial consultation with neighbouring 
parcels.  

 

 

 

Location of potential pedestrian bridge 
Potential alternative pedestrian routes 
Location of photo 

67



DP14-0221 & DVP14-0223 – Page 4 

 
 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The ‘U2’ project consists of two phases – each being a 66 unit 4 ½ storey multi-family apartment 
building over an enclosed parking structure. The total number of units in the ‘U2’ project is 112 
units with 98 parking spaces proposed to be enclosed in the parkade and 14 in a carport structure 
within the outdoor parking area in front of the building. There will be an additional 40 surface 
parking spaces which includes the required 16 visitor spaces. The total required parking spaces is 
167 vehicles and the development is seeking a variance to permit only 155 vehicle parking 
spaces. 

The steep slope area on the eastern portion of the subject property results in approximately 28% 
of the site area not suitable for development and is protected through a no-build / no-disturb 
covenant. A trail system and pathways will connect the building site to the main pedestrian 
pathway along Academy Way to the west as well as the regional trail system that exists along the 
eastern boundary of the site. On site viewpoint nodes have been incorporated into the landscape 
design. The main vehicle access to the site will be towards the south end of the site which will 
create an easy transition from street level to the building site. This entry location provides for a 
“gateway” design element to be created and present a welcoming vista into the site. Further, a 
community garden / orchard will be incorporated into the landscaped area between the two 
buildings.  

4.2 Site Context 

The ‘U2’ development project is located on the north slope adjacent to Academy Way and 
immediately south of the ‘U1’ development project which is a 3 ½ storey 66 unit residential 
building. The property has a Future Land Use designation of MRM – Multiple Unit Residential 
(Medium Density) in the Official Community Plan and is within the Permanent Growth Boundary.. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North 
C3 – Neighbourhood  Commercial 
RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing 

Vacant 

East A1 – Agricultural Park 

South RM4 – Transitional Low Density Housing Multiple family dwellings 

West 
RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing 
P2 – Education and Minor Institutional  

Vacant 
School 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

68



DP14-0221 & DVP14-0223 – Page 5 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 845 Academy Way 

 

4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM5 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 1,500 m2 21,3890 m2 

Lot Width 30.0 m 107 m 

Lot Depth 35.0 m 240 m 

Development Regulations 
Site Coverage (buildings) 40 % 17 % 

Site Coverage (buildings, 
driveways, and parking) 

60 % 26.1 % 

FAR 1.16 0.39 

Height 18.0 m and 4 ½ storeys 14.3 m and 4 ½ storeys 

Front Yard (west) 3.0 m 0.6 m 

Side Yard (north) 7.0 m 37.9 m 

Side Yard (south) 7.0 m 7.0 m 

Rear Yard (east) 9.0 m 69.9 m  

Other Regulations 
Private Open Space 2,465 m2 2,581 m2 

Parking Stalls 167 155  

Bicycle Spaces 
56 Class 1 spaces 
12 Class 2 spaces 

89 Class 1 spaces 
12 Class 2 spaces 

 Indicates a requested variance to reduce the minimum number of parking stalls from 167 required to 155 proposed. 

 

69



DP14-0221 & DVP14-0223 – Page 6 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height and siting. 

Parking Relaxations.3 Consider parking requirement relaxations, in areas that are not part of a 
cash-in-lieu program, where an approved TDM strategy indicates a lower use of vehicles and the 
City is satisfied that parking relaxations would not create parking spill-over problems on 
adjoining neighbourhood streets. Parking relaxations will not be considered in hillside areas (as 
defined on Map 4.1 - Future Land Use). 
 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 No comment. 

6.2 Parks and Public Spaces Department 

 SROW for public access must be registered on subject property as per the Primary Parks, 
Trails and Open Space Plan prepared by CTQ in July 2010 Area Structure Plan, 
(attachment to follow in subsequent email).  The applicant should work with the City's 
Real Estate Manager (Jeff Hancock 250-460-8410) to register the SROW prior to issuance 
of the DP. 

 The applicant is proposing a multi-use trail along the BC Gas corridor.  This is consistent 
with the ASP and the design and construction of the trail must meet City standards for 
surface material, width and specifications.   

  Boulevard treatment on Academy Way should match has been previously approved for 935 
and 975 Academy way with regards to street tree species, size, spacing and other 
landscape treatment. 

6.3 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached memorandum. 

 

 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 
3
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.11.1 (Development Process Chapter). 

70



DP14-0221 & DVP14-0223 – Page 7 

 
 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: August 2nd, 2014 
Date of Public Consultation:  November 27th, 2014  
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager  
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director - 
 Community Planning & Real Estate 

 

Attachments:  

Applicant Notification 
Development Engineering Memorandum 
University Village Master Plan – Primary Parks, Trails, and Open Space System 
Applicant Rationale 
Draft Development Permit / Development Variance Permit 

 Schedule ‘A’ 
o Site Plan  
o Floor Plan 

 Schedule ‘B’ 
o Elevations 

 Schedule ‘C’ 
o Landscape Plan 

 

71



 

 

 

72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



DRAFT RESOLUTION 
 
 

Re: Bylaw No. 11039 (Z14-0045) – 828, 834, 871 & 877 McCurdy Place, Harmony Holdings 
Limited            

 
 
 
THAT Council defers consideration of Bylaw No. 11039 (Rezoning Application No. Z14-0045) to 
the February 3, 2015 Public Hearing. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Staff has advised that the development sign was not posted on the subject property, and 
therefore the Applicant did not meet the requirements of Development Application Procedure 
Bylaw No. 10540 with respect to signage.  The Applicant is aware that Council’s consideration 
of its application will have to be deferred. 
 
 
 
Date: January 6, 2015 
File: 0610-53 

115


	Agenda
	3. Draft Minutes - December 9, 2014 Public Hearing.pdf
	3. Draft Minutes - December 9, 2014 Tues Regular Meeting.pdf
	4.1 BL11035 (TA14-0011).pdf
	4.2 BL11036 (Z14-0049).pdf
	4.3 Bylaw No. 11037 (OCP14-0020).pdf
	4.4 Bylaw No. 11038 (Z14-0037).pdf
	4.5 Bylaw 11040 (Z14-0046).pdf
	4.6 Bylaw No. 11041 (Z14-0039).pdf
	4.7 Bylaw 11042 (Z14-0040).pdf
	4.8 Bylaw 11043 (LUC14-0001).pdf
	4.9 Bylaw 11044 (Z14-0043).pdf
	4.10 Bylaw 11045 (Z14-0042).pdf
	6.1 2015 01 13 Report DP14-0158 DVP14-0161 Chapman Pl.pdf
	6.1 Attachments DP14-0158 DVP14-0161.pdf
	6.2 2015 01 13 Report DP14-0221 and DVP14-0223 Academy Way - U2.pdf
	6.2 2015 01 13 Attachments 845 Academy Way.pdf
	7.1 Draft Resolution - BL11039_Z14-0045_No signage.pdf

